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carefully designated him each time his name is mentioned as

"prosecution witness TANAKA" even though the testimony referred

LAY .
to st given as part of the defense case, The defense likewilse

1gnare that TANAKA's wide knowledge of many facts of this case

. was brought into the case by defense efforts. The prosecution

§ = -

introduced the witness TANAKA to testify on a 1imited group of
1ssues out of the many issueg in this ease -= the Manchurian

and North China events, T+ was the defense who disclosed his

wider knowledgé through thneir cross-examination. The defense

charge bias because his testimony 1s unfavorable to some of the

‘defendants and favorable to others and not because they can

point to any evidence to show bilas, In a case of this magni-

tude 1t {s not surprising that the testimony of a witness

~+ should not be equally damaging to all. It would indeed be real

-

grounds for suSpicion if TANAKA's testimony had tried to

1mplicate al1l. The defense's real objection to TANAKA's

- testimony 1s that unlike most .of the Japanese witnesses who
v appeared before this Tribunal he testified directly and forth-
e rightly, naming names and rixing dates without attempting to

.- «-:beetoud the issues with a verbal garnish, amd on cross-examination

ansnered the questions propounded without attempting to evade.

v B

Tha defense attack on TANAKA is by necessity a reneral blanket

s — i

_.charge, They can point to 1little that is speeific, The most

they can do is point to an error in a date, a fact which the

wifﬁééé himself eonceded, Such errors do not malkte a witness'

testimony untrustworthy gspeciaslis ~ren 5o much_nf_it is con-
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~carefully designated him each time his name 1is mentioned as

prosecution witness TANAKA" even though the testimony referred '

| .a.k?.h
to was given as part of tha defense case, The defense 11kewise

.1'1gndre that TANAKA's wide knowledge of many facts of this case

tude i1t 13 not surprising that the testimony of a witness

was brought into the case by defense efforts, The prosecution
1ntrodncgdwthe;;1tnéss TANAKA to testify on a limited group of
1sines;opt of the many issues in this case -- the Manchurian
and North China events. Tt was the defense who disclosed his

wider knowledgé through their ‘eross-examination. The defense

‘charge bias because his testimony is unfavorable to some of the |

‘defendants and favorable to others and not because they can

point to any evidence to show bias. In a case of this magni-

should not be equally damaging to all. It would indeed be real
grounds for suspicion if TANAKA's testimony had tried to

-+ 4mplicate all. The defense’s real objection to TANAKA's

testimony 1s that unlike most of the Japanese witnesses who

qppeared'before this Tribunal he testified directly and forth-

"~ 'rightly, naming names and fixiné dates without attempting to

_;'bgnloud the issues with a verbal garnish,; amd on cross-examinatlon

answered the questions propounded without attempting to evade,
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e Tha detensa attack on TANAKA is by necessity a seneral blanket

" witness himself conceded, Such errors do not make a witness'

.. testimony untrustwopthy especial? i ~hen &0 much of it 1s con-
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char;e. They can point to 1ittle that is specific, The most
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_ they can do is point to an error in a date, a fact which the
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ca“efully designated him each time hia name is mentioned as

| "prosecution witness TANAKA" even though the testimony referred

t
to ihs given as part of the defense cagse, The defense llkewlse

1gnore that TANAKA'S wide knowledge of many facta of this case

was brought 1nto the case by defense efforts. The prosecution

© - introduzed the witness TANAKA to testify on a limited group of

i{ssues out of the many issues In this cage -~ the Manchurian

and North China events, Tt wags the defense who disclosed his

wider Y¥nowledgé through tneir cross-examination. The defense

charge bias becaus2 his testimony is unfavorable to some of the

defendants ard favorable to others and not because they can

- 'point to any evidence to show bilas, In a case of this magni-

tude 1t 1is not surprising that the testimony of a witness

“should not bte equally damaging to all. It would indeed be real

= grounds for suspicion if TANAKA's testimony had tried to
i@g}{ggtq all. The defense’s real objection to TANAKA's

" “testimony is that unlike most of the Japanese witnesses who

* “gppeared before this Tribunal he testified directly and forth-

_'rightly, naming names aml rixing dates without attempting to

—_— W -

becloud the issues with a verbal garnish, amd on Ccross- amination
'\

T guswered the questions propounded without attempt*ps to evade.

i — - -

The defense attack on TANAKA is by necesgsity a general blanket

R

charge, Tﬁey can point to 1ittle that is specific. The most

witness nimself eonceded, Such errors 4o not make a witness'

“testimony untrustworthy csnestaliv wren g puch of 1t is con-
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'May .It Please The Tribunal:

i 1. In its final reply the prosecution will not fclloa
theutraditional or orthodox pattern of dissecting and analyzing
the final arguments of the defense in great detall. Such an

,anproach would serve no useful purpose in this proceeding. To

/ point out specifically item by item each mis;tatement of fact,

each misquotation, each misleading summation of evidence, each
igntenable inference and to reyute and answer them one by one
would be of valne to this Tribnnal only if the contéﬁﬁioné’
sought to be established through their use presented a valid
defense to any issue now befo;e the Tribunal. But they du not
-f“e*~acccmplish this purpose. If yé should assume for purposes of

uargument that each of the errcrs, whether of fact or of inier-

——

ence; were true and valid, we would still be compelled to con-

e ——

B
MR -am - -
e WGP & W P

- clﬁde that either they fail to establish the contentions sought

to Be established or that any contention established by their

e e R § -

i w -:.-.'hq#-'

use is not a defense to the charges being considefed by the

. Ppibunal. Under such circumstances to attemptl to make a de-

T .tailed reply on all errors no matter how minute and no matter

ngq*insignificant would be an act of disservice to the Tribunal

{
; ~and would by beclouding the fundamental 1issues 1n ‘this case

““'"“_'"'unwarrantedly increase the already heavy burden of this Tri-

e

bunal Under these circumstances the prcsecuticn at this
*ﬁ”time iwlll limit itself solely to a consideration of the major
'-W¥ contentions presented by the defense arguments.
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-"Hﬁayuif Please The Tribunal:

-1. .In itsufinai reply'the prosecution will not follow
‘the. traditional or orthodox pattefn of dissecting and analyzing
the final arguments of the defense in great detall. Such an
anpre;cn would serve no useful purpose in this pxoceedingu To
_ point out specifically item hy item each misstatement of fact,.
eaqh miSquotstion, each misleading ‘summatibn of evidence, each
untenable inference and to refute and answer them one by one
would Pe of value to this Tribunalicnly if the contennions
~soughft to be established through their use presented a valid
defense to any 1issue now before the Tribunal. But -they a4 not
;acccnplish this pnrpcse."If yé should assume for purposes ol
rargnment that each of the errors, whether of fact or of 1lniev-
ience; were true and valid, we would still be compelled to con-
clude that either they fail to establish the contentions sought
to be established or that any contention established by thelr
_' :L:;use is not a defense to the charges being considered by the
”l'[i ‘Tribunal Under such circumstances to attemptlto make a de~

L

tailed reply on all errors no matter how minute and no matter

-

"ggg_insignificant would be an act of digservice to the Tribunal
and would by beclouding the fundamental lssues in ‘this case
"'_7"“'"f_hnnairantedly increase the already neavy burden of this Tri-
bunal Under these circumstances the prcsecuticn at thils
time will limit itself sclely tc a consideration of the major

i contentions presented by the defense argumentsg
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- | 1.- In'its final reply the.prosecution will not follow
the,treditienal or orthodox pattern of dissecting and analyzing
the final arguments of the defense in greet detail. Such an
anproach would serve no useful purpose in this proceeding. To
point out specifically 1tem by item each misstatement of fact,
each misquotation, each misleeﬂing‘summation of evidence, each
"untenable'inference and to_refnte end answer them one by one

f;'woulahte of value to this Triennalionly if the contenions

_sought to be established through their use presented a valid

defense to any issue now before the Tribunal. But they 4c¢ not

' accnmplish this purpose. 1If we should assume for purposes of

argument.thet each of the errors, whether of fact or of inier-
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ence, were true and valid, we would still be compelled tTo con-
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"““'*”“elude that either they fail to establish the contentlons sought
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“‘“‘te be established or that any contenticn established by thedir

'-ause 1s not a defense to the charges being consldered by the

iﬁnnel. Under such circumstances to attempt to make a de-
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t_il d reply on all errors no matter how minute and no matter

Eb!:insignificant would be an act of disservice to the Tribunal

and would by beclouding the fundamental issues 1in this case
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'#%“””"Eunal Under these circumstances the prosecuticn at this
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May It Please The Tribunal:

T

'i. In its final reply the prosecution will not follow
. the. traditional or orthodox pattern of disseetlng and analyzing
the final arguments of the defense in great detall. Such an
;nproacn would serve_no usefui purpose in this proceeding. To

- point out specifieally.item b§ item each misstatement of fact,
each misquotation, each misleading ‘summation of evidence, each
untenable inference and to refute and answer them one by one
would be of value to ‘this Tribunal;enly if the conteniocns
sought to be estabiished_threugh their use presented a valid

" defense to any 1issue now befere the Tribunal. But they 4dc not
eccbmplish this purpose. If @é should assume for purposes of
argument that each of the errors, whether of fact or of inier-

" ence, were true and valid, we would still be compelled (o con-

iy~ clude that either they fail to establish the contentions sought

.F;”" to be established or that any contention established by their

_use is not a defense to the charges being considered by the

el

Tribunal. Under such circumstances to ettempt to make a de-
'*f:~*tailed reply on all errors no matter how minute and no matter
how”insignificant would be en;act of disservice te the Tribunal
" and would by beclouding the fundamental issues in*this case
H“M_un!errantedly increase the already heavy burden of this Tri-
bunal Under these circumstances the prosecution at thils

time'will limit itself solely,to a consideration of the major

contentions presented by the defense arguments.

'

. -
sy o gl =

. i L - ’
e, . Ay e 1T
g

B ek b e kil . i e B & ST e o S i i i Ty = i — o B e e e e i . s e e i "



L e e

354

B | W Py, B | N, RS Amsem s alR Vi wE W i

-*—h—h—q--—-ﬁﬂiﬁ-—_a—-ﬂ-“-—uﬂ R ST —— e e ——— Y T TR L e e B
-

i
.
- e ———— L —— R S

— il o o W ——— - il = - e

flssdE s o o BET

e Ay W W

S e e—— ol e W e e I kI R

® ; -
w T 1 “ - — SR T e o ——— —

r#‘_ﬂ# o e gt AR W WS TR SRt g Sma iy e ——— o

-w_*-_ T T e o o L e R e e L I T A g gk s e Fpa, R e e ey e .t B Mg e s LR Pt e e e . b L e

=
¥

P

ESSRINSSRNSSGREIPSY /. 5 .-z:’é_rét.é;% _. - ..%;.. A\~ , GRS (T i

|

- ———— ity B Aban Py gy’ Hygtd ot adlY i ge emss e W e o g2y Paa| S pmtes St cpmede  Samb, e - et S - e e

- - . : A =5

" | [ L T e e e ek L T R . g fat we . T e SRl W e - imee sl =

. — - N W e T T I -

——— At = . S ) on T . SRS e gl S = R R R I o e -

SR/ Y I/ S

3 !

- - iy g @ S Gl i e o wrdr | ey e s

. e G s s B e e R e iy . WA e ey lly S o e W e, e el BT &

P —— e & ity cates o el e e

e — s e




T T SR S

May If Please The Tribunal:

1: In its final reply. the prosecution will not follow

the.traditional or orthodox pattern of dissecting and analyzing

the final arguments of the defense in great detall. Such an

aoproach would serve no useful purpose in this proceeding. To

| point‘out Specifically item by item each misstatement of fact,

B each misquotation, each misleading summation of evidence, each

] -u J
1, untena

would be of value_to this TriounalFonly if the conten®iocons

ﬁle inﬁerence and to refute and answer them one by one

sought to be established through their use presented a valid

defense to any issue now before the Tribunalo But they dc not

. accomplish this purpose. If we should assume for purposes of

T g ¥

"argument that each of the errors, whetber of fact or of inier-

--,ence;'were true and valid, we would still be compelled to con-

.. P T 3

A clude that either they fail to establish the contentions scught
T gy pe established or that any contention established by their

_usé iS'not a defense to the charges being considered by the

Tribunal Under such circumstances to attempt'to make a de-

tailed reply on'all errors no matter how minute and no matter

--«-“"w-how-insignificant would be an act of disservice t

-

-'-ﬂ--

o the Tribunal

and would by beclouding the fundamental issues 1n this case

unwarrantedly increase the already heavy burden of this Tri-

— . bunal. Under these circumstances the prosecution at this

time will limit itself solely to a consideration of the major

?t" =

contentions presented by the defense arguments.
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May It Please The Tribunal:

1. 1In its final reply the prosecution will not follow

-

the.traditional or orthodox pattern of dissecting and analyzing

% ".the final arguments of the defense in great detall. Such an

e Japproach would serve no useful purpose in this proceeding. To

point dut specifieally item bﬁ item each misstatement of fact,

each'misquotetion,leach misIeéding ‘summation of evidence, each

4"-—-#-

would be of value to this Tribunal only if the contenions

sought to be established through their use presented a valid

defense to any issue now bero?e the Tribunal. But they dc not

accomplish this purpose. If eé should assume for purposes of

efgument that each of the errors, whether of fact or of inier-
o /.o ence, were true and valid, we would still be compelled to con-
~_clude that either they fail to establish the contentions sought
BRI be established or that any contention established by their
,;;nsevis net a defense to the charges'beiné coneidered by the
Tribunal. Under such circumstances to attempt to make a de-
e ‘tailed reply on all errors no matter how minute and no matter
hnw insignificant would be an act of disservice to the Tribunal

- — ———— ]

and would by beclouding the fundamental issues in this case

“—“""**“unwarrantedly increase the already heavy burden of this Tri-

bunal - Under these circumstances the prosecution at this

- -~ - --1-’

,Lﬁytine=w111 1imit itself solely to a consideration of the major

ﬁfn-contentions presented by the defense arguments.
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May 1t Pleaseane Tribunal:

-

1. 1In its final reply the prosecution will not follow
the;traditional or orthodox'pattern of dissecting-and analyzing
the final arguments of the defense in great detail. Such an
avproach would serve no useful purpose in this proceeding. To

:point out specirically item by 1tem each misstatement of fact,
each misquotation, each mis;eéding summation of evidence, each
untenable inference and to refute and answer them one by one

..would be of value to this Tribunal only 1f the conten’ions
;“"'“~sought to be established through their use presented a valid
-?- defense to any 1issue now before the Tribunal. But they doc not .
th.hlaccomplish this purpose. If we should assume for purposes of

e & “~argument that each of the errors, whetber of fact or of infer-

”'ence, were true and valid, we would still be compelled to con-

S clude that either they fail to establish the contentions sought

%;‘ ta_he established or that any contention established by their

-;fie use is not & defense to the charges being considered by the

"Trlbunal. " Under such circumstances to attempt to make a de-

*teiled reply on all errors no matter how minute and no matter

.-H.s-q. s

' and would by beclouding the fundamental issues in this case

~~unxarrantedly 1ncrease the already heavy burden of this Tri-

S T

S P bunal. Under these circumetances the prosecution at this

i;'rt1MGiwill limit 1tself solelx,to a constderation of the major

"‘* - . - -

-

“* cententions presented by the defense arguments.
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Hay it Please The Tribunal

- il Lo L] L -

ot * 1s In'its final repi& the prosecution will not follow
theﬂtraditional or orthodox pattern of dissecting and analyzing
'the finel arguments of the defense -in great detall., Such an
".wanproach would serve no useful purpose in this proceeding. To
point out specificelly item by 1tem eacq.misstatement of fact,
each misquotation,.each misleading ‘summation of evidence, each
"-untenable inference and to refute and answer them one by one
would be of value to this Tribunal only if the conten”icns
.msought to be established‘thropgh tpeir use presented a.valid

defense to any iseue now befoye the Tribunal. But they 4 not

*'ace;mplish ‘this purpose. If we~shou1d'assume'for purposes of
'_‘argument that each of the errors, whether ef fact or of inier-
-L;ence, were true and valid, we would still be compellen to con-

clude that either they fail to establish the contentions sought
 hto be established or that any'contention establisned by their
lfuf;eﬂuse is not a defense to the charges being considered by the

-~ Pribunal. Under such circumstances to attempt to make a de=
: eailed reply on all errors no matter how minute and no matter

hon,insignificant would be an act of disservice to the Tribunal
22 and would by beclouding the fundamental 1lssues in this case

unrarrantedly increase the already_heavy burder cf this_Tri-

bunal Under theee circumstances the prosecution at this

,_N&EQEe will limit itself solely to a consideration of the major
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that wben a matter has been reduced to writing, the writing

is better evidence of its contents and the facts than the oral

testimony of any~witness.f The silent witnesses in a-case == . .

the documents - are more reliable witnesses than the 1iving

-
-

witness. They are not eubject to any of the human fraiItIes,

They tell their story and neither add to nor detract from it.,wﬁ

f.
#ﬂi‘ i‘

They do not forget. They cannot be ceught unawaree; They

"'
b S wniﬂm e

. peak for thpmselves end are not %fggcted or wqat qthzr;rmeg

say ‘about them. Unlees altered by human agents they o-not

Hﬁ‘“w [

_chanée'their story. - Even when altered they reveal ‘the COmplete o

T3S R . ——
story of their elteration. This defense contention ie one.of"

] -'_‘ ‘ -

the most ‘eurious arguments that has evér been presentedwto

.H-.-H- &

any Tribunal. What better evidence could there be of a*plan

f - —— il
-

of aggressive warfare than the very plan itselfs Could any

witnees speak with greater etrength and more conviction‘than

™
e N S

the written plans and orders for the printing of occupation o

‘-—-‘-‘-—-—_‘ e ————1 a ®
.= ‘.‘L

do

urrency for use in the Southern regions dated more than nine - R,

'months before war began? Sl ey T

13. If there were ever any doubts that documentary 1

r- -

evidence is the best evidence, those doubts should rorever be % o g
laid to rest by the events of this case. We have seen in.this

courtroom one of the key erchitects of the demands made on

China through Germany in December 1937 - the defendant KIDO a2

“qtate that he could not remember these terms.  If one of the_ ..

principal drafters of the demands could not remember the terms, :
13a. . T..31,423-5 . | G

J :’ﬂ -:- by

‘ "
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- _ Page 18- -7
that when a matter has been reduced to writing, the writing
is better evidence of its confents and the facts than the oral
testimony'of any witness. The silent witnesses in a casa-r-
- the documents -- are more reliable witnesses than the living
witness. They are not subject to any of the human frailties,
They tell their story and neither add to nor det:actufromﬂitr*..-
They do not forget. They cannot be caught unawares.- They
speak for thepselves and are not af(ected Qy what othfr; may
say about them. Unless altered by human agenta they do" not

change their story. Even when altered they reveal the complete

p— L L

story of their alteration. This defcnse contention is one of

Ay~
the most ‘curious arguments that has evér been prcsented~tp~

any Tribunal. What better evidence could there be of a plan

-
-“...-......_-...-.._._..‘.._,.

of aggressive warfare than the very plan itself? Could any

witness speak with greater strength and more ‘conviction-than =

-

the written plans and orders for the printing of occupation |

currency for use in the Southern regions dated more than nine |

months before war began?

13, If there were ever any doubts that documantary
evidence is the best evidence, those doubts should rorever be -
12id to rest by the events of- this case. We nave seen,in.this
courtroom one of the key architecta of the demands made on
China through Germany in December 1937 -- the'defendant KIDO .

a |
state that he could not remember these terms. If one of the

principal drafters of the demands could not remember the terms,

138, [T. 314235
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r"l'-

st | $ 15==1In its final repiy tne-proseoution will not follow
:theitraditional‘or orthodoxlpattern of"disseoting and analyzing
ithe final arguments of the defense in great detail. Such an
aoproach would serve no useful purpose in this proceeding. To
'Jpoint out specifically item by item each misstatement of fact,
each misquotation, each misleading ‘summation of evidente, eacth
untenable inference and to refute and answer them one by one
would be of value to this Tribunal only if the contentions
2““'sought to be establlished through their use presented a valid
-;,defense to any issue now before the Tribunal. But they do not
acoomplish this purpose. If té should assume for purposes of

that each of the errors, whether of fact or of infer-
- B
we would still be compelled to con-

“argument
.eszizy €0CE, WETe true and valid,
clude that either they fall to establish the contentions sought

T AN e b

*"'“T"“Eo'be established or that any contention established by their

A ———

.- use-is not a defense to the charges being considered by the

- " L e i

Tribunal Under such circumstances to attempt to make a de-

- e - -

tailed reply on all errors no ‘matter how minute and no matter

n~—~rf—hew~insignificant would be an aot of .disservice to the Tribunal

and would by beclouding the fundamental issues in this case

P hunal. Under these circumstances.the*proseoution at this

ﬁtime will limit itself solely to a consideration of the major

¥ * g e

*:*'contentions presented by the defense arguments.
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 May It Please The Tribunal:

oy P 2 1, In its final reply the prosecution will not follow

= tHeo traditional or orthodox pattern of dissecting and analyzing {

the final arguments of the defense in great detall. Such an

epproach_would serve no useful purpose in this proceeding. To

point out specifically item bz item each misstatement of fact,

" each misquotation,_each mislegding'summation of evidence, each

erence and to refute and answer them one by one

untenable inf

would be of value to this Tribunal only if the conten*ions .

T to be established through their use presented a valid

sought
' defense to any issue now before the Tribunal. But_they do not

If we should assume for purposes of

il &

accomplish this purpose.

TN "3 | -l'*'.i'

argument that each of the errors, whether of fact or of infer- -9

ence, were true and valid, we would still be.compelled To con-

y faill to establish the contentions sought

b=

"clude that either the

-.-M

to be established or that-any'contention established by their

:;ij:;use is not a defense to the charges being: considered by the
:f‘ Tfribunal. -Under such circumstances to attempt to make a de- |
o mns "tailed reply on all errors no matter how minute and no matter |

g how insignificant would be an act of disservice to the Tribunal

and would by beclouding the fundamental issues in this case

LA, awunwarrentedly increase the already heavy burden of this 1Iri-

bunal"' Under these circumstances the prosecutlon at this

%§§ime will limit itself solely to a consideration of the ma jor

contentions presented by the defense arguments. T
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1. In its final reply the prosecution #4111 not follow

-

il o T -

the. traditional or orthodox pattern of dissecting and analyzing
the final arguments of the defense in great detall. Such an
‘approach would sefve no usefu% purpose in this preCeeding. To
- point out specifieelly item bi item each misstatement of fact,
each misquotation, each mis;e%ding;summation of evidence, each
untenable inference and to refﬁte end answer them one by one
would be of value to this Trihunal only if the contenaions
'"dsought ks be ‘SbRB1Lanes through their use presented a valid
- defense to any issue now before the Tribunela But they do not
accomplish this purpose. ‘If ye should assume for purposes of
w0 argument that each of the errors, wheteer of fact or of infer-
vesne.ence, were true and valid, we would still be compelled to con-
- clude that either they fail to establish the contentlons sought
to he established or that any'contention established by their
> teergiioy IS B is-not a defense to the charges being considered by the
Tribunal. Under such circumstances to attempt to make a de-
=7 tailed reply on all errors no matter how minute and no matter
_.how.. 1nsign1ficant would be an act of disservice to the Tribunal
and would by beclouding the fundamental 1ssues in this case
'xﬁﬁ$5frantedly increase the already heavy burden of this Tri-

: buﬁal. Under these circumstances the prosecuticn at this

time will limit itself solely‘to a consideration of the major

h&ﬁ&
cententions presented by the defense arguments.

eewﬂyrw.j et |

.......

- - - ; - . s ' \ A - .
&." o re L e L B X T e o e T N s “ Tl s ' ' : . -
" - a AN BN - Iy A b T ol Tl L o o Ly o T ey WA SRR L, AT R e T et M TR e gy Ly e T S T VTR ICY [ A el o, .
= _J S 5 -, - B g ALY S i e e Iy - s




L T T R e

e g S " == . Wi— e — e T T 0 T —m— W W = e [ e e s B T R Betfa iy euess Srei. gty ¥ e B e Rl - cau =B B oag o - By

Ll

—— — mn'-— S — ql--- T et - — g e . . —- O — = —— s SR W . L= e, o o e S a— - —— ri-‘i-"‘ - - e
]

s e M GT . Sl s i |

S

A —— - e W W e e S e—

rg 1|

|
B
-y 8 W
|

- "
Ye ———ili i ——— — —— . | g e s el p ek e By e e A

-%/ mﬂ_/ Fre S v

/ %Mmmw Gt 4«#

'3 ‘M-“"'Hﬂ‘h.‘*ﬁﬂﬁﬁl-'-'—-‘l- el AW e B L ) Mg P T B e R e aEs g e s e e R AR e e e S g . < e T T

| bR at b o /Mﬁiﬁdﬁ 74

| e ——— e W Pl Wy 3 e g N T e -“"-_-;1- .-.ﬂ Panm | atEem e ems  Cmessf  smaee ™ S J— e el e ORI p— S_— owe -y o

/ ) i

I |

l" \ WM Lo l L4 i - 5 -y, m — AL - .
h -mmmﬁﬂ-m A . d)*'“- — o s - - . . ._. .- '

;; : %

I

e ——— et = [ S e e = e =W - = e T wme - —— ] g = 3 W, B —— S Temgs i R S - ——— i —— W i Al b Sl e — - —— - —— - e B W W

it . / / /4 _ —

I " - - - = -
' o ¢ SRR A ] 5 A WP vy 3 B S T A 7 s s 2 e

e i pla, S B e eSS S e VTR - T - o= - |- £

- . | o 7, 3

| 8 PTG L W (DA Vi (F GeE Y. S SRR B Sl s e L SWE T WS ED GAR S ety T LB R Sy . - B N —— - O - — T I e

| ' '
i -'.'| - f {{
‘.n - - - - - -
.I h" e . . — o ——— A — - .

b - ] e af e Se i me —— e gl e sme e e e b e e — v

IHWH__ A S A - R e . Gy A— Y R e i e e o e g . ——— | i W A W —— - s

,_._,...____,(w..fﬁ&&ci&...aﬁ.q%_ﬁ?a?/fh

. e S i s T e e L R s ] BCR A+ - e L e . L T § T e .-—'.--"-".H & dintia wTew g Pl oRes .

| — bt




iiifﬁeﬁﬂlt Pleasejfne Tribunal:

1. In its final reply the prosecution will not follow
the. traditional or orthodox'pattern of dissecting and analyzing

:the final arguments of the defense in great detall. Such an
enproach would serve no useful purpose in this proceeding. To

pbint out specifically item hy 1tem each misstatement of fact,

N

- each misquotatien, each misleading ‘summation of evidence, each

untenable inference and to_refute end answer them one Dy one

S — e R e g e

LL

would be of valne to this Tribnnal only if the centenmiens

*

— . y .
-

sought to be established through their use presented a valid

. _

defense to any issue now before the Tribunal. But they dc not
sccomplish this purpose. If ne sheuld assume fer_purposes of
*argument that each of the errors, whether of fact or of inter-
- _‘ence; were true and valid, we would still be compelled to con-
e """ciude that either they fall to establish the contentions sought
'f;f"“"‘to be established or that any contention established by their
| use is not a defense to the charges being censidered by the

+JH_- Tribunal. Under such circumstances to attempt 10 make a de-

tailed reply on all errors no matter hew minute end no matter

-hew insignificant would be an act of disservice te the Tribunal ‘

~and would by beclouding the fundamental issues in this case

- —— — e . .. " ——

nnwarrantedly increase the alreadyrheavy purden of this Tri-

-

m i emmnae e bunal; Under these~circumstances the prosecuticn at this

wht;melwill limit itself solely,to a consideration of the major

i m;contentions presented by the defense arguments.
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from the Japgnﬂse goyéfnmant whidﬁ'had been summarized

b

| {+1n nis direct testimony, As soon as this.disclosure was made,

the matter was dropped and no effort made to examine the paper.

Notwithstanding‘this, Liebert is accused of not substantiating

c

- his aireraft figures. This entire attack 18 a belated thought.

-

“court;

The defense never had any doubts as to the official character
or the accuracy of Liebert's figures. They SO statéd in open

During the direct-examination of the witness OWADA

during a general phase, Mr, SHIOBARA, when invited by the

I n

- = ol B . i

" 0

-

-

i - -

- o @

-

- - *T"-"-il'.-
s stated:
& + " . )
e T
=
L

19,

"President to have the witness deal with Mr. Liebert33+riguréﬁ,

WMy, Liebert's testimony was pased mostly
on the materials which he had obtained from

the Japanese government, and as far as the
figures are concerned they are mostly

correct."d

The attack on the witness Ballantine is of a more

ié@igiqus character. Although we might devote considerable

* “ ¢ime to examining the various unwarranted statements made 1in

- P-ak

L]

“the defense summation on the diplomatic negotiations with the

. Hg{igq_States particularly in reference to Mr, Ballantine,

" - one example will suffice since it 1{s {1llustrative of the whole

-

=T T .S

~ " document.
|“ ;_+gﬁ§s§1on of equality of commercial opportunity, the followlng

In the cross-examination of Ballantine on tha-.

questions and answers appear:

-“f*_—————————————————r————————-ﬂ——ﬂf-“—
& i
"¢, (Defiense Supmation J, DP. 30)

1

> iy = - o aml =

- W > - il -
- “l——ﬁ—w 3

e
RSN/ 77 SN

"Qe Now; in view of those proposﬁls and -con-
versations, did not the Department of

'”State consider {hat there had been a meeting

of minds on this point subject only to srcuring
the authoritative that is to say, the written
provisions to that effect from the Japanese

Government?
[ S S
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AT uircraft from the JaPanese government which héd'béeh summarized
-;ff-f*in his direct testimonyE As soon as this disclosure was*made,
the matter was dropped and no effort made tc examine the paper.
_Notwithstanding this, Liebert 15 accused of not aubstantiating
his aircraft figure:. This entire attack 1s-a belated thought,
_The defense riaver had any doubts as to “the official character
| I_or the accuracy of Liebert's flgures. They so stated in open
7 “eourt, During the direct-examination of the witness OWADA
. ;édufing a general phase, Mr, SHIOBARA, when invited by the

President to have the witness deal with”ﬂr._Liebert's figqrés,

“"stated:

"Mp, Liebert's testimony was based mostly |
2 X on the materials which he had obtained from l

the Japanese government, and as far as the
figures are concerned they are mostly k
' correct."d o
ey s Uy {357 attack on the witness Ballantine is of a more qé
SR Epidious character., Although we might devote considerdble }
" time to examining the various unwarranted statements made in |
TETTT T the defense summation on the diplomatic negotiations with the "

= United States particularly in rererence to Mr, Ballantine,

ppe “example will suffice since it is 111ustrative of the whole

L’”‘*"'document In the cross-examination of Ballantine on the: -

) el " question’ of equality of commercial opportunity, the followlng

‘-I-l"l"---lI--"I --*1 —l"--‘vlr

questions and answers appear:

& = R el Ea

-

A Vs e Sl W 2 nQ, Now, in view of those proposals and con-

\ By T ool S SO versations, did not the Department of

Y, b 5 ) - State consider ihat there had been a meeting
in 2 P s TR minds on this point subject only to g:curing

f SRl s s the authoritative, that is to say, the alittan

- e provisions to tha% effect from the Japanese

TN PR e Government?

- - m R.. T. 8640-1
| | (pefiense Surmation Jy Pe 30)
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aircraft from the Japahaae kogornment which had been sﬁmmérizeq

b |
~ ’Vin ‘his direot testimony. - As sbon’as this disclosure was*hade,

ths matter was dropped and no effort made to examine the paper.

-Notwithstanding this, Liebert 15 accused of not substantiating
¢

his aircrart figures. This entire attack is a belated thought,

r”i_The derense never had any doubts as to the official character

or the accuracy of Liebert's figures, They so stated in open
'conrt. During the direct-examination of the witness OWADA . } &
during a general phase, Mr, SHIOBARA, when invited by the B
President to have the witness deal with Mr, Liebert's figures,

! " stated:

"

"Mp, Liebert's testimony was based mostly
on the materials which he had obtained from
the Japanese government, and as far as the
figures are concerned they are mostly
correct."d
g SEct i _'19. The attack on the witness Ballantine is of a more
1naidious character, Although we might devota considerable
| tima to examining the various unnarranted statements made in
f cpmom o gpa dafense summation on the diplomatic negotiations with the
United States particularly in reference to Mr, Ballantine,

one example will suffice since it 1is {11ustrative of the whole

"%'flﬂf*“dooumont. In the eross-examination of Ballantlne on the:
\ - ;n_ _;”qgggpion of equality of commercial opportunity, the following

'quegtions and answers appear:

B . s I - "Q. Now, in view of those proposals and con-
| P - L T versations, did not the Department of
e T State consider éhat there had been a meeting

of minds on this point subject only to gscuring

the authoritative, that is to say, the written
provisions to thai affect from the Japanese

| " Government?
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atreraft from the Japanese government which had been summarized
in his direct testimony. As soon as this disclbsuféusaéfﬁga;?%-

the matter was dropped and no effort made to examine . ihe pgper.-
Notwithstanding this, Liebert 1is accused of not substantiating

c 34w . Tme ma

his aircraft figures. This entire attack is a belated thought, =

The defense never had any doubts as to the offigial,charactﬁ?im.

or the accuracy of Liebert's figures, They sco stated in open

court. During the direct-examination of the witness OWADA = ™

Ay

 during a general phase, Mr.‘SHIOBARA,‘when_innited.h§;$héQw;_w

1T e g B @ i ——
il - — e — = .....—.--..‘-—'_'.:-'m -

President to have the witness deal with Mr, Liebert's fféuﬁeﬁ;i4

 stated:

e ~ wpp, Liebert's testimony was based mostly..... e ...
on the materials which he had obtained. from cmsik
the Japanese government, and as far as the

figures are concerned they are mostly . ._m_.;hm;;;“
correct."d | b

K

19. The attack on the witness Ballantine is.é; a'éﬁfgt_w
-Lihsidioué character., Although we might devote considerable ....
time to examining the various unwarranted statements made in |
the defense summation cn the divlomatic negotiationsiygﬁhrfﬁéF?

United States particularly in reference to Mr, Ballantine,.

-~ - one example will suffice since it is illustrative of the whole

" d6cument. In the cress-examination of Ballantine on theTt it

quastlon of equality of commercial oppor tunity, the.foLléyihg;

questions and answers appear:
tees cem e b "Q. Now, in vieéw of those proposals and con-
3 f . versations, did not the Department .of. ..... ...
j ‘ State consider {hat there had been a meeting i
ek - of minds on this point subject only to =:curing
: .w--the.guthoritattzeg'that is to s=ay, the written. ... .

provisions to that effect from the Japanese.
Government? B
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aircraft from tha Japanese government which had béen summaniéed
b

" in his direct testimony. As soon as this. disclﬁsure.waa madn,_
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Notwithstanding this, Liebart is accusad of not substantiating
¢
hig aireraft figures. This entire attack 1s a belatad thought,
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or the accuracy of Liebert's figures. They so stated in'bpen

court During the direct-examination of the witness OWADA
during a general phase, Mr. SHIOBARA when 1nvited by tha v
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President to have the witness deal with Mr, Liebert's figures,
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stated: | il P ey

 wMp, Liebert's testimony was based moStly - . - .
on the materials which he had obtalined from e
the Japanese government, and as far as the
figures are concerned they are mostly - .- ozoraulies
correct."d e i A VS T
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.19, The attack on the witness Ballantine is of a more
insidious character, Although we might devote conpiderabig-a~‘”
time to examining the various unwarranted statements made in
the defense summation on the diplomatic negotiations with the
United States particularly in reference to Mr, Ballantine, --——

one example will suffice since it 1is 1llustrative of the whole

M—-.-*"‘ '

document. "In the cross-examination of Eallanilne on the
question of equality of commercial opportunity, the following=

questions and answers appaar:

"Q, Now, in view of those proposals and con- S

versations. did not the Department of . | et tich
State consider that there had been a meeting |
of minds on this point subject only to =-° curing _
the authoritative, that is to say, the written .. . -
provisions to that effect from the Japansse ‘
Government?
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Should he have known? . . B T e N
I cannot say that he should have known because everyone was in a

position where he was either going to die or live and in a situation
like that Icould not positively state. ==° = ° s C _

Did Iwabuchi have Navy _officezis. ander:-him? -
YESq S .- : £l

Were reports made to bim? . bie i | |
I do not know. I presume that he reccived reports by the officers,

but I cannot saye

In othcr words, you assune that reports should have been made?

I figure that it would not be natural for anybody to report that he
had killed another person and such as that. I beliesve that it would
be natural for o person to try to hide and not report it if such a
thing should happen, In Shanghei I have trained my men and have
instructed them to be very careful to study whether a person should
be killed-as an enemy or not. I have told them if they could not
determine whether a person should be killed they had weak character.

In the handling of civilians where it becomes necessary, in the
opinion of the comuanding officer, to kill hundreds of civilians

at one time, would that be a decision such as the commanding officer
would make? | : '

If a group of civilirns werc interned in one place and they had to
be killed, then it would be a decision for the commanding officer.
But I do not lmow the situation in hanila, I believe that what
happened was done at various points and did not reouire it.

Where it would take a whole day to gather hundreds of civilians in
one place by a ruse or by force, with the object in view to kill
them after they had been gathered together, would that require the
order of the commanding officer?

By my common sense, I would say that it would be natural that if
the battle w-s not so severc the commanding general should be con-
forred with, but I do not know what the situation was at that time
and I cannot figure out what it was. Therefore, I cannot say for
thot certain case if it could have been done or nots *

If I werce to tell you that the incident. Aas=wsi -3 "l':'- hila, " b gL ag
tion was onec of many such incidents, would you say it was a pord of
the overall plan in the handling of th? dgefconse of Manila?

I believe that there was no such plan in the defense of Manila, I

say that vfith firm convietiion.

If T.werc to tell you that the same thing was hapgening at the same
time in many parts of Manils, vould you say that it was.ea part of ..

¢h6 over—all plan for the defense of kanila?

I very much believe that there was no such thing as that planned in

the defense of hanila,

Now if I were to tcll you that rany hundreds of civilians werc h?rded
together in one place at the same bime in- .different-parts-of kanila,

would you say that the arder to herd these peoplc together and kill
them had conme from a commanding officer?

If that was done all ab.once, T should think.that it could have been

by an order,

it 1 wér.e to tell you that at.approximately the: swue time -hundreds

of civilians were herded together in Manila, in Luzon, in Davao, and

in other parts of the Philippines and were killed, would you say

that such plans had been Lade by-a man in-a position to issue orders

to cover such large territory.

13- Japanese Han
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Should he have known? . .

T cannot say that he should have known because everyone was in =2
position where he was either going to die or live and in a situation
like that Icould not positively state. |
Did Iwabuehi have Navy officers _'uniier him?

Yes. .- . ~

Were reports made to him?

'I-do not knmow. I presume that he reccived reports by the officers,

but I cannot say. -

In other words, you assume that reports should have been made?

I figure that it would not be notural for anybody to report that he
hnd killed another person and such as that. I belicve that it would
be natural for a person to try.to hide and not peport it if such a
thing should happen, In Shanghai I have trained my men and have
instructed them to be very careful to study whether a person should
be killed as an enemy or not. I have told them if they could not
determine whether a person should be killed they had weak character.

In the handling of civilians -where it becomes necessary, in the
opinion of the comnanding officer, to kill hundreds ol civilians

at one time, would that be a decision such as the commanding officor
would make?

If a group of civilisns werc interned in one placc and they had to
be killed, then it would be a decision for the commanding officer.
But T do not know the situation in hanila. I believe that what
happened was done at various points and did not require it.

"here it would take a whole day to gather hundreds of civilians in

one place by a ruse or by force, with the object in view ©o kill
then after they had been gathered together, would that require the
order of the commanding officer? | ~ - :

By my common sense, L would say that it would be natural that if

the battle wrs not so severz the commanding general should be con-

ferred with, but I do not know yhat the situation was at that time
and T cannot figure out what it was. Therefore, I cannot say for
thot certain case if it could have been done or not,

If I vere to tell you that the ineident dnr-=dt 1 2= 3 % a5 =
tion was one of mainy such ineidents, would you say it was a part o

the overall plan in tlie handling of the defense of Manila?
T believe that there was no such plan in the defense of hanila, 1

say that with firm convietion.

If T worc to tell you that the same thing wes happening at the same

time in many parts of Manila, vould you say thot' it was a part of

the over—all plan for the defense of kanila? . ... - e
I very much believe that there was no such thing as that planned in

- ihe defense of kanila.

Now if T were to tcll you that sany hundreds of civilians werc hc;arded
together in one place at the same vime in different parts of kanila,
would you say that the order to herd these people together and kill
them had come from a commanding officer? ~ |

If that.was done all at once, I should think that it could have been

by an order.

If I were to tell you that at approximately the sw:e time hundreds
of civilians vere herded togsther in'Manila, in Luzon, in Davao, and
in other parts of the Philippines and were killed, would_you say
that such plans had been nade by a man in a position to issue orders

to cover such large territory,

-13=- Japanese Han
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ridentiary Docuurii Noe. 5193

-

that wvas used as an assembly camp by the Japaﬁeson I went to

Cubanatuan, Camp No. 1, vhere I was held from 29 June, 1942, until

26 October, 1942; then I was sent to Davao, Penal Colony on the
island of HMindunao where I wats held from 11 November, 1942, until
June, 1944k. I was returned to Cubenatuan vhere I was held from June,
191414. until October, 194%4. I wms then at Bilibid Frison Hosnital, '

. Wonile, from Octobe.r 194, wntil December, 1944. I was then at

Fukioko, No.. 22, Igushu, Ji:pan, {rom Jonuary, 1945, until April.
1945« I was ot Hoten Prison Camp, lukden, lonchuria, from April,
1945, until liberatibn on 15 iugust, 1945.

Describe your boat trip from M:nila,

-1687 men, all Americans who had been @:lthered at Bilibid Prisen

Hospitol at Fanila, boarded the Jupanese tronsport, Irioko karu, at
lenila, Pier 7, on 12 Deccmber, 1944. Vio were piled into two- holds
and we siere so crovded thut we were not all able to lie down at the
game time. If one sat down, aother had to stand up. The Japanese
sent us o teabucket of water, for 700 men., There vere only two bucleis
in three duys and each bucket contznined only about six gallons of
water., There were no sanitation facilities, not =ven buckets. and

we were not permitted to go on dock even for sanitation purposes.

The only oncs who were permitted to go on deck were those who went

for foods The air was particularly foul and between December 12th and
Decembor' 14th, several hundred men died of suffocation or lack of waters
e lkept yellin; for water and air, There was a Japanoce guard at the
top of the ladder and he would not cven listen to us, There is no
aceurute account of how mony died because we vore bombed 1l4th Décembar
and on the morning of the 15th, and abandoned the beat thot day.

vhat occurred in connection with the bombing?

we were bombed on the l4th und the boact went eground. ¢ wera bomrbod
aguin on the 15the The Joprnesc took off then and luter we took of f,
Approximately 1200 of the original group were able to get cshores

~hat happcned then?

lle were kopt on the Islond of Luzon &t Xlongopo. .o 1200 were kept in
an enclosed tennis court. There were no lutrine fucilities. ‘e were
fed four timos during the scven doys. lkch time we received oply 13
spoonfuls of uncooked rice und wve haod no facilitics with whicu to cook
ita .e worc given some clothing. .e¢ had to rcmoineat the macudem
tennis court all day und all night, stork naoked. Izny of us suffored
from cold., During this seven-duy period, 100 .‘merican military pers-
onel died from exposurc, dysentery and sturvation. Tho Japonese
gathered their bodies once a day.
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"Jhilt occurred in connection with the bombing?

that wvas uaed as an asaambly camp by the Japanese,, I went to
Cebanatuan, Camp No. 1, vhere I was héld from 29 June, 1942. until
26 October, 1942; then I was sent to Davao Penal.Colony on the
island of iindunao vhere I was held from 1l November., 1942, until
June, 1944 . I was returned to-Cabanatuan vhere I was held from June,
194y, until October, '194)i. I wes then at Bilibid Frison lospital,
Manilu, from QOctober, 1944, until December, 1944. I was then at
Fuldioko, No. 22, Kyushu, Jopan, from Jenucry, 1945, until April.

1945s 1 was ot Hoten Prison Camp, lukden, lanchuriay from April,

1945, until liberation on l5 uuguat 1945

Desgcribe  your bmt ‘l:rip from Minila,

1687 men, all Americans who had been gathered at Bilibid Prison
Hospitaol at iunila, boarded ‘the Jupanese tronsport; Irioke karu, at

- Monila, Plex 7, on. 12 Deccomber, 1944. Vie were piled into two holds

and we were 2o crowded thut we were not ell able to lie down at the
game time. If one sat dovr, apther had to stand up. The Japanese
sent us a tecbucket of vater for 700 men, There were only two buckets
in three doys and each bucket contained only about six gallons of
wvater, There were no sanitation facilities, not sven buckets, and

we were not permitted to go on dock even for sanitation purposes.

The only oneo “ho vere permitted to go on deck were those who vent
faor foods The acir wag particularly foul and between December 12th and

- December l4th, several hundred men died of suffocation or lack of water.

ile kept yellin; for water und air, There was a Japanece guard at the
top of the ladder andé he would not cven listen to us, Thore is no
accurate account of how muny died because we viore bombed 1l4th December
and on the morning of the 15th, and abandoned the boat' thct day.

—

we vere bombed on the l4th and the boat went sground. ¢ were bombed
again on the 15thes The Jupecnese took off then and luter vie took off.
Approximately 1200 of the original group weire able to get ashores

«hat huppened then?

Vie were kopt on the Island of Luzon at Alongopo. ‘e 1200 were kept in
an encloscd tannis court. There were no latrine facilities. /e vere
fed four timos during the scven days. Ikch time we received only 1%
spoonfuls of uncooked rice und we hod no facilities with whiclk: to cook
ita ¢ wore given somo ¢lothing. e had to remaineat the nacudem

_ tennis court all day cnd all night, stork naked, Izny of us suffered

from cold. During this seven-dty period, 100 .merican military pers-
onel died from exposure, dysentery and sturvation. The Jopanese

. Gothered their bodics once a day.,
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that vas used as an assembly camp by the Japanese. I went to
Cubanatucn, Camp Noe« 1, vhers I was held from 29 June, 1942, until
26 October, 1942; then I was sent to Davao Penal. Colony on the
igland -of Mindunao where I was held from 11 November, 1942, unbtil
June, 1944 . I was returned to Cabasnatuzn vhere I was held from June;
1944, until October, J944. I wes then.at Bilibid Prison Hospital,
Monilu, from October, 1944, until December, 1944, I was then at
Fukkioko, No. 22, Iushu, Jupen, from Jonuzry, 1945, until April,
1945 I was at Hoten Frison Camp, lukden, lfanchuria, from April,

1945, until liberation on 15 August,-1945.

Describe your boat trip from Minila.,

1687 men, all Americans who ‘had been gathered at Bilibid Prison
Hospital at kunila, boarded the Jupanese tronsport, Irioko karu, at
Monila, Pier 7, on 12 December, 1944 . Vic were piled into two holds

and e -were so crowded thut we were not all able to lie down at.the
some time. If one sat dovn, aother had to stand up. The Japanese

sent us a teabucket of vater for 70'!1 men. There were only two buclktets
in three duys and each bucket contoined only about six gallons of
water. There were no sonitation facilities, not aven buckets, &and

we were not permitted to go on dock even for sanitetion purposes.

The only ones vho were permitted to go on deck were those who went

for food. The air was poarticularly foul and between December 12th and
December 1llhth, several hundred men died of suffocation or lack of water.
e kept yelling for water and air, There was a Japanese guard at the
top of the ladder and he would not cven listen to us. There is no
accurate account of how mony died becsuse we viere bombhed 14th Decembder
and on the morning of the 15th and abandoned the boat thot deye

Whut occurred in connection vith the bombing?

«e wore bombed on the l4th u#nd the boct went aground. © were bembed
aguin on the 15ths The Juponese took off then and loter ve took off.
Approximately 1200 of the original group were able to get ushore.

+hat huppened then? '

We were kept on the Island of Luzon at ilongopo. e 1200 were kept in
an eiuclosed tonnis court. There were no lairine focilities. e vwere
fed four timos during the scven duys. Jhech time we received only 13
spoonfuls of uncooked rice und ve hod no facilities with whici to cook
its ¢ woro given someo clothing. e had to romoineat the macudem
tonnis court all day cnd 2ll night, stark noked., rony of us suffered
from cold, Duringz this seven-duy period, 100 .merican milZtazy pera-
onel died from exposure, dysentery aund sturvation. Tho Jopaneso
gathered their bodies once a day.

——

-2-

;}.‘.

& LA b e S T

."l
Ay fey

W Y e L R L

PR YT



L]
.
- — - My ey o g - —— e T
e T T TN T T e ot WD e e T LETeaa) i ST
- i - e - - N ] L y i . o i 2 [T L) L = M i ey G - 1
B N N B ST s o T ATI TRt S BT ln T = PAE T L0 SIS S SN0 PR A Yo o e )
i 4 L] L . o 3

-

-
L]
=

Vi ik =5

B

L v




‘ridentiary Docun~nic No. 5193

14

fl h'
I' o

that was used as an agssembly camp by the Japcnesc. I went to
Cabanatuzn, Camp No. 1, vhere I was held from 29 June, 1942. umn b1l
26 October, 1942; then I was sent to Davao Penal.Colony on the
island of HMindinao where I wvas held from 11 November, 1942, until
June, 1944« I wos returned to Cabanatuan vherc I-was. held from June.
1944, until October, 194l4. I wes then at Bilibid Prison Hosnital;
Mhnilu, from October, 1944, wntil December, 1944. I was then at
Fukioko, No. 22, Iyushu, Jopan, from Jonucry, 1945, until April.
1945, I was ot Hoten FPrison Camp; Mukden, Manchuria, from April,
1945, until-liberation on 15 sugust, 1945.

Describe your boat trip from lMinila,

1687 men, all imericans who had been gathered at Pilibid Prji:son
Hospitol at Funila, boarded the Jopanese tronsport, Irioko ioru, at
Manila, Pier 7, on 12 Decombor, 1944 . Vic were. piled into two holds

and we were so crowded thut we were not all able to iie dowvm at the
samo time. If one sat down, @other had to stand up.: The Japaneso.
gent us a tecbucket of mater for 700 men. There vere only two buclkeis
in three days-and each bucket contained only about six gollons of
wvater., There were no sanitation facilities, not even buckets. and

we werg not permitted to go on dock even for sanitation purposebB.

The only ones-vho were. permitted to go on deck were those who vient

for foode The air was particularly foul and between December 12%h and
December 14th, several hundred men died of suffocation or lack of watere
e kept yetkin; for.water ond air, Thore was a Japanese gwwd at the
top of the ladder and he would not cven listen to ud, " Phere is no
nceurtte account of hov muny died because we viore bombed 1lkth Deceimaer
and on the ‘morning of thae 15th,and abandoned the beat thot day.

Wwhot occurred in connection 'with the bombing? )
\ie wore bombed on the l4th und .the boat went aground. ¢ were bombed
again on the 15th. The Jupcnese took off then and luter ve took off.
Lpproximately 1200 of the original group wele uble to get ashores

+~hat huppcned then? : _

e were kept on the Island of Luzon at llongopo. o 1200 were kept in
an oucloscd tennis court. There tvore no lairine fucilities, e wero
fed four timos during the scven days. Ikch tiwme we received only 13
spoonfuls of uncooked rice und ve hod no facilitics with whicu to cook
its e wero given some clothing. .2 had to ~cmai ngat the maccdem _
tonnis court zll day cnd all night, sterk naked. !eny of us suffored
from cold. During this seven-duy peried, 100 merican milita-y perg-
onel died from exposure, dysentery and sturvaticn. The Jopaneso
gathered their bodics once a day.
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that vas used fz an-assembly -camp by the Japanesc. I went to
Cabanatucn, Camp No. 1, vhere I was held from 29 June, 1942, il
26 October, 1942; then I was sent to Davao Penal Colony on the

| island of ifindunao vhere I was held from 11 November, 1942, uctil

l June, 1944. I was returned to Cabanatuan vhere T was held from June.
1944, until October, 1944, .1 ves.then at Bilibid Frison Hospital,"" -
Monilu, from October, 1944, until Docember, 1944. I vas then ot
Fulkioko, No. 22, Iyushu, Jopen, from Januory, 1945, until Lpril,
1945, I was at Hoten Prison Camp, lukden; lianchuria, from April,
1945, until liberation on 15 sugust, 1945.

Qs Describe your. boat trip from Minila, - . - S

Ae 1687 men, all fmericans vwho had been gnthered at Bilibid Prison

i Hospital at Minila, boarded the Jupanese tronsport, Irioko kaoru, ot
lonila, Pier 7, on 12 Decomber, 194l . Vo were piled ‘into’ two “holds

‘ and we were =o crowled that we were not ell able to ilie down at the
gnme time. If one sat down, aother had to stand upe The Japanese

sent us o teabucket of vater for 700 mem,  There were only two buckets

in three doys and each bucket contained only about six gallons of
l- waters There were no sanitation facilities; not even buckets, and
we were not permitted to go on deck even for sanitation purposes,
The only ones “ho Were permitted to go on deck were those vho vent
for food. The air was particularly foul and between December 12ih and
i December 14th, neweral hundred ‘men died of suffocation or lack of water.
e kept yelling for water and aiv, Thore was & Japanese guard at the
top of the ladder and he would not cven listen to uss Thore is no
aceurate account of--hov mny ‘died becauss we vorc bombed 1lith December
and on the morning of the 15th, and abendoned the boat thot day.

e Whaot occurred in connection with the bombing? =

L., Gie vere bombed on the l4th und the boot went aground. ¢ were bombau
agnin on the 15th. The Jupenesc took off then and later we took, off,.
Approximately 1200 of" the original group vere oble to get ashore.

‘s whot huppened then? - r Y PR

/. Vie vere kept on the Island of Luzon at Llongopos e 1200 were kept in
an enclosed tennis court. Thera were no luirine focilities. e wewc
fed four timos during the soven days. Ikch time we received only 1.
spoonfuls of uncooked rice und we hed no facilities witn whici: to conk
ita e voro given somo clothing. .2 had to ~cmdd neat the mactdem
tennis court all day ©nd all night, stark naked. LNy of ug suffored
from cold., During this seven-duy period, 100 ‘merican military pers-
onel died from exposure, dysentery and sturvation. Tho Jopanesac
gothered their bodies once o day.
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-ridentiary Docun~L: No. 5193

that ves used a3 an asscmbly camp by the Japcnesc. I wen?t to
Cubanatucn, Camp No. 1, vhere I vas held firom 29 June, 1942 vabnl
26 October, 1942; then I was sent to Davao Penal Colony on the
island of iindunao where I was held from 1l lovember, 1042, urtil
June, 1944 . I was returned to Cubanatuun vhere T was held from June.
1944, wmtil October, 1944. I wes then at Bilibid Frison losnital,
Monilu, from October, 1944, until Docember, 1944. I was then ot
Fukioko, No. 22, Iyushu, Jopen, from Jonuary, 1945, until April,
1945, I was at Hoten Frison Camp, lukden, ifanchuria, from April.
1945, until liberation on 15 sugust, 1945,

Qe Describe your boat trip from Minila.

A. 1687 men, all Americans who had been gathered at Bilibid rrison
Hospital at Manila, boarded the Jupanese tronsport, Irioko iaru, at
Monila, Pier 7, on 12 Deccmber, 1944, Vo were piled into tvwo holds
and we were so crowded thut we were not all able to lie down at ithe
oome time. If one sat dovm, aotheor had to stand ups The Japangse
sent us o tecbucket of vater for 700 men. There vere only two buckeis
in three doys and each bucket contained only about aolx gallons of
water. There were no sanitation facilities, not «en buckets, and
W7o were not permitted to go on dock even for senitation purposes.

The only ones “ho were permitted to go on deck wore those who vent

for food.  The air was particularly foul and between December 12th ana
Docember 1lhith, several hundred men died of suffocation or lack of wvater.
e kept yelling for water and air., There was a Japanose guerd at the
top of the ledder mand he would not oven listen to . us. There .is no
‘aceurate account of hov mony died because e vore bombed 1l4th DecemZer
and on the morning of the 15th, and abandoned the boat thot daye

e Whot occurred in connection with the bombing?

L. ‘e were bombed on the 14th und the boat went acround. ¢ were bembau
again on the 15ths The Jopronese took off then and luter tic took off.
hpproximately 1200 of the original group meie able to get ashores

‘.« what huppened then?

i Ue verec kept on the Island of Luzon at Llongopos 1@ 120G =ere kept in
an eucloscd tannis courts Thera wore no lairine facilities. «e wo=e
fod four times during the scven doys: lkech tiue we received only 1l
spoonfuls of uncooked rice und Ve hed no facilitics wita whicu Lo cook
its e werc given pomo clothing., .3 had to ~emudnecat the sacLlen
tennis court all day cnd ell night, stark nahed. Izny of us suffored
from cold. During this sever-avy period, 100 Mmeriean milivaty Dpers-
onel died from expozurc, dysentery and glorvaetion. Tho Jupenesc

" pothered their bodics once o day.
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e ﬁE'}Bu know the names of any Japunese personnel who vere with you
on the boat? :
Ae Yes, I cdo, Lt. luwrata wvho came to tlie group from Cabanatuan,
Fhilippine Islands, am a Japanese civilian interpreter namea
ir. .Jada were directly responsible for these conditions. Their
attitude was one of good intentions to our faces and of no coucaern
once they were away from us. .hile we were in this tennis court,
they continually said they were trying to arrange transportation .
and food for uss Ilowever, at the same time, they .ould be secn &cross -
the roed with Japanese soldiers, talking, laughing, drinking beer A
and smoking cigarettcs; and from what I understand, did nothing |
to mitigate the situation. |

| Qe Jibat happened then?

| Ae. 'e were then taken to San Fernando, Fhilippine Islands, where we
were kept in an old abandoned theater for three days. e were
then lo:ded on a reilroad car. One hundred of us were crowded
into a box care. These cars were the smnall Europoan size. The
Japanese placed some of our personnel on top of the cars so the
bombers wouldn't hit them. These men were given pillow cases and
white flogs for signaling.

Qe Vhere were you taken next?

Ao We were talken off the trcuin at Linguien on the Island of Luzon. e
spent part of the day in thc school yard where we were given no
sanitation facilities, .e were then marched to the becacli where ve

| remained two days and one night. Je viere on the sand; haod no

shade; almost no water ond that which we did have was measurcd by
the spoonful, Mo Officers, including one coloncl, und also one
enlisted men died from exposuree Incidentally, we were in fear of
our lives becnuse under the scnd of the beach had been buried pgus-
oline and ammunition. |

| Qe dcre you again loaded on 2 boat?

Ae We were put on a horcé transport., There were two holds and I vias

i in the second onc. I;'ps grouped among horse remeins, flies and
corruption. Again, wd%er wes measured by the spoonful. e vere
supposed to have been fed two times a day but often we vwerc only

‘ fed once a day. Our food gcnerally consisted of threg teblespoon-
fuls of hot water soup and, the same amount of cooked rice,two times

I a day, IBny of the men died eithar from accumulated w@eknesses from
former experiences, dysentery or malaria, The dead would average
25 a day mainly from starvation, dysentery or infection. .€ Vere =

starved that we ate flies and sone men even picked grain that vas on
the floor with the horse rcmins,
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Evidentiary Document No. 5193,

w4 Do ‘ﬁu know the names of eny Japanese personnel who were with you
on the boat? &l | ; RN

hb Yes, I do. Ltmﬁ;_&ta who came to the grou “from Cabanatuan,
Fhilippine Islonds; and a Japanese civilian interpreter nared
Mri ada were directly responsible for -these conditions. Their
‘attitude was one of good intentions to our faces and of no concoern
once they were away from us, <hile we were in this tennis court,
they continually 'edid they were trying to arreénge transportzilon .-
and food for us. However, at the same time, they would be seen &Cross
the roed with Jepanese soldiers, talking, laughing, drinking beer
and emoking cigarettcs; and from what I understand, did nothing

to mitigate the situztion.

Qe Vihdt happened then? ; _
A. Ve were theén takeh t0 San Fernandoy Philippine Islands, where we
_ were kept in an old abandoned theater for three days. ue were
3 | then lo:ded on a reilroad car. One hundred of us were crowded

- into a box ¢ér. These cars were the snall Europoan size. The
Japonese placed some of our personnel on iop of the cars so the
. bombers wouldn't hit them. These men were given pillow cases and

” white flags for signaling.

Qe Vhere were you taken nexi?

| A. e were taken off the trzin et Linguien on the Island of Luzon. e
spont part of the day in the school yard vwhere we vere given no
sanitation facilities, .e were then marched to the beacl where ve
i remained two days and one night. Je were on the sandj had mo
shadej almost no water and thet which ve did have was measurcd by
; the spoonfuls Two Officers, including one colonel, znd £lso one
enlisted men died from exposurc. Incidentally, we were in fear of
our lives beccuse under the scnd of the beach had been buried gaos-
oline and ammunition.

-‘l -

Qe .ere you again loaded on a boat?

Ae le were put on & horcé transports There were %3O holds and I was
in the second onc. I,%as grouped among horse remeins, flies and
corruptions Again, wmdSer wes measured by the spoonful. .¢ Vore
supposed to have been fed two times a day but of ten #e werc only
fed once a day. Our focd generally consisted of threg tablespoon-
fuls of hot water soup und the same amount of cooked rice,tvo times
a daye. lany of the men died either from accunmulated waaknesses from
former experiences, dysentery or malaria., The dead would average
29 n day mainly from starvation, dysentery or infection. e vere

starved that we ate flies und some men even picked grain that was on
the floor w7ith the horse rcmains.
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Doc. Nc. 24074 Prize 1A

- VIII, Priscners cf war who were narchec
| fron Bataan t2 S:n Fernando in Anril 1942 were brutally
| trented by Jananese guards. The guards clubbed

| nrisoners who tried tc get water, and one priscner

e | was hit on the head with 2 eclub for helping a fellow

. . prisoner who had been knocked down by & Jananese
| arny trugk. A colonel who pmointed tc a can ef salrmon

by the sife of the road and asked f2>r food for the

prisoners vas struck on the side of his h¢cad with the

can by a Japanese officer. The colonel's faca was cut
men, Another coleonel who had found o synpathetic

Filipinc with' a2 eart was horsewhipnped in the face for

trying to glve transmortaticn to nersons unable to

walk., A Lubac a Filipins who had been run through

and gutted by the Janonese wWas hung over a barbecd-

wire fence. An Anerican Lieutenant Colonel was killed

by & Japanese as he broke ranks to rfiet & drink =t =

strean.

WJepanese sentries used rifle ovutts nd bayonets
indiscrininately in feorcing exhausted priscners of wer
tec keep noving on the narch from the Caobanatuan rail-
road station £3 G+ Nsa 2 in lzte Wy 1942,

"At Cabanatuan Lieutensnt Ciolonels Lloyd Biges ond
Howard Breltung and Lieutencat ®. D. Gilbert, attemting
to escane during Soptember 194: were severcly beaten
rbout the legs and feet znd then waken out tc the carr
and tied te ~osts, were strionped and were kept ticd ux
for two “avs. Theilr hands werc tied behind their bncks
to the nosts s¢ that they could rpot sit down. P-ssing
Filininns were forced to bent ther in the faze with :
clubs, N~ fo2d or ymafer wos ziven to then, after twe
days of t~rture they were talkan away . and, a2ceoréing tn
the staternents of Jaranese gu:rds, they viere killed,
one of then by decaplitaticon. Other Arericsns wero
sinilarly tortured nné shct writhout trizl at Cabanctuan
in June or July 1942 becnuse they endeavored to bring
food into the carm. After being tied to a fence nost
inslide the canmp 5r two days they were shot.

"At Czobanatuan during the surtier of 1942 ihe
fnllowing incidents -~ccurred: A J-~rpesc sentry boent
a nrivate as brutelly with a shnvel acrnss the bacic and
, ' the thiegh that it was necessary to send nim to tha
hcsnital. Aarn-ther Anerican wns ceripple? for nonths
after his ankle w2s struck by a stone thrown by o
Jananese. One Jaranese sentry used the shaft of - golf
club to beat Anerican prisoners, ant two Anericeans

.,.
A R

i caught while obteining fozd from IMilipinos, were beatan 2ot
?f unnercifully on the face end bady. An 2fflcer vcs ik
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‘ridentiary Docuwarn: No. 5193

that was used a2z an assembly camp by the Japanesce I went to
Cabanatucn, Camp No. 1, vhere I was held fiom 29 Juae, 1942, wnirl
26 October, 1942; then I was sent to Davao Penal Colony on the
island of iiindcnao where I was held from 11 November, 1942, uriil
June, 1944. I was returned to Cabanatuap vhere T was hold frrom June.
1944, until October, 1944. I wos then at Bilibid Frison MHospital,
Manilu, from October, 1944, wntil Docember, 1944. I was then ai
Fukioko, No. 22, Iyushu, Jopeun, from Jonuary, 1945, uwntil /pril,
1945, I was at Hoten Irison Camp, lukden, lonchuria, from April,
1945, until liberation on 15 sugust, 1945.

Describe your ncat trip from M:inila.

1687 men, all fmericans who had been gathored at Bilibid rriscr
Hospital at Manila, boarded the Jupanese tronsport, Irioko laru, at
Monila, Pier 7, on 12 Decomber, 1944 . Ve were piled into two holds
and 7e were so crowed thut we were not £ll able to lie domm at the
samo time. If one sat dovn, epthor had to stand up. The Jopanesc
gsent us a tecbucket of water for 700 men. There were only two bucicets
in three days and each bucket con’‘zained only about six gallons of
water., There wero no sanitatior recilities, not oven buckots. and

vwe were not permitted to go on dock even for senitation purposes.

The only ones ho were permitted to go on deck were those who vent

for food. The air was particulerly foul and between December 12%¢h ana
Decembor 14th, several hundred men died of suffocation or lack of ™@HeT.
7e kept yellin; for water and air, Thore was a Japencse guurd at the
top of the ladder and he would rot even listen to us. . There is no
aceurate cccount of hov muny diud beceuse we vore hombed 14th DNecember
and on the morning of the 15th, and abendoned the beat thrt day.

What ococurred in connection with the bcmbing?

we were bombed on the l4th und the boat went acround. o wers bombne
again on the 15the The Jcprnese took off then and luter v took off.
LApprazimately 1200 of the original group weie uble to get ashore.

+hat huppcened taen?

Yle woro kept on the Iuland of Luzon at xloagopn. le 1200 were kepl in
en sucloscd tennic courS. There were nn lairine Tocilitioss e veoe
fed four tiamns during the soven days., Jhch tiuwe we receivod only 1)
apoonfuls of uncooked rice und e hel no faeilities wita wuica W ¢conk
its» e woro gi.en mite clothing., .2 had in rerincat thu mactien
tonhis court nll day und all nipght; stark nnked. lzny oif ns suffered
from colds Uuring this sever-uiy period, 100 jlmerican mlivalty ners-
onc). diel from exposurc, dysentery and slurvetion. Tho Jupen3sc
gathered thelr bodics once a day.
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Evidentiary Document Nd. 5193,

ﬁB'FBh khow tHe names of any Japuanese personnel who were with you

'Yées, I dos Lt Murata who came to the group from Cabanctuan,

Fhilippine Islands, amd a Japanese civilian interpreter named

Mr4 Jada were directly responsible for these conditions. Their
attitude was ocne of good intentions to our faces and of no concarn
once they were away from us. .hile we were in this tennis court.

they continually said they were trying to arrcnge transportetion ..
and food for us, IHowever, at the same time, they would be secn tcross
the rced vith Jepunese soldiers. talking, laughing, drinking beer

and smoking ciparettcs; and from what I understand, did nothing

‘le were then taken to Can Fernando, Philippine Islands, vhere we
were kept in an old abandoned theater for three days. ‘e were
then lo:ded on a reilroed car. One hundred of us were crowded
into a box car, These cars were the small Europoan size. The
Japanese placed some of our personnel on top of the cars so the
bombers wouldn't hit them. These men were given pillow cases and

e were tallen off the trcin at Linguien on the Islend of Luzon., Ve
spent part of the day in the school yard where we were given no
sanitation facilities, .'e were then marched to the beacli where e
remeéined two days and onec night. e viere on the sand; had no
shadey; &almost no water ond thet which we did have was measurcd by
the spoonfuls Two Officers, ineluding one colonel, und nlso one
enlisted man died from exposurec, Incidentully, we were in fear of
our lives because under the scnd of the beach had been buried gas-

Jere you again loaded on a boat?

on the boat?
Ao

to mitigate the situation,

| Qe Tihat happened then?

Ao

white flcgs for signaling.
Qe vwhere were you taken next?
A

oline and ammunition.
Qe
Ay

We vere put on & horcé transport. There were two holds and I was
in the second ones I.%es grouped among horse remeins, flies and
corruptions Agoin, wder was measured by the spocnful. \le vwere
supposed to have been fed two times a day but often e werc only
fed once a day. Our food gcnerazlly consisted of threg teblespoon-
fuls of hot waiter soup und the same umount of cooked rice,tvio times
a4 day. lkny of the men died eithwr from accumulated wgeknesses from
former experiences, dysentery or malaria, The dead would average
25 a day meinly from starvution, dysentery or infection., .e vere =

starved that 7e ate flies and some men even picked grain that vas on
the floor with the horse rcecmains.
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Evidentiary Document No. 5193,

Do 'F::iu know the Hames of any Japanese personnel who were with you
on the boat?

Yes, I dos Lt: lMurata vho came to the group from Cabanntuen,
Fhilippine Islandd; amd & Japanese civilian interpreter numea

i Jada were directly responsible for these conditions. Their
attitude was one of good intentions to our faces and of no councarn
once they were away from us. .hile we werc in this tennis courta
they continually said they were trying to arrunge transporteti
and food for ua@,ﬂowavcr, at the same time, they would be sccn &cross
the rced with Japanese soldiers, talking, M%hing, drinking beer
and smoking cipjarettcs; and from what I understand, did nothing

We were then teken to San Fernando, Philippine Islands, where wve
were kept in an old abandoned theater for three days. .e wverc
then lo:ded on a railroad cer, One hundred of us were crowded
into’a box cer. These cars were the anall Europoan size. The
Japanese placed some of our personnel on top of the cars so the
bombers wouldn't hit them. These men were given pillowv cases and

fe were taken off the trcin et Linguien on the Islend of Luzon. e
spent part of the day in the school yard vhere we were given no
sanitation facilities, .e were then marched to the bcaell where we
remained two days and one night. Je were on the sand; had no
shadey almost no water ond that which we did heve was measurcd by
the spoonful. Two Officers, including cne coloncl, cnd also one
enlisted men died from exposure. Incidentully, ve were in fear of
our lives becuuse under the scnd of the beach had been buried gis-

Jdere you agein loaded on a boat?

Ae

to mitigate the situation,
Qe That happened then?
A

white flags for signaling.
'« vihere were you taken next?
A

oline and ammunition.
Qe
Ao

e were put on a horcé transport. There were two holds and I was
in the second onc, I,¥as grouped among horse remeins, flies and
corruption. Again, wdker wes measured by the spocnfule. “we vere
supposed to have been fed two times a day but often #e werc only
fed once a days Our food generzlly consisted of threg tables poon-
fUls of hot water soup and the same amount of cooked rice,two times

a day. liBny of the men died eithur from accumulated waaknesses from
former experiences, dysentery or malaria. The deead vwould average
25 a day meinly from starvation, dysentery or infection. .e vere
starved that we ate flies und soine men even picked grain that vas on
the floor with the horse rcmains.
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"Charge XVI. At Camp O'Donnell many of the nen had
to 1live without shelter during 1942. In one case twenty-
threec officers werc assigned to a shack, fourteen by twenty
feet in size. Drinking water was extrenely scarce, 1t
being necessary to stand in line six to ten hours to get a
drink. Officers had no bath for the Tirst thirty-iive
days in the canp and hac but cne gallon of water cach in
which to have their first baths afier that delay, The
xitchen ecquipnent consisted of cauldrons and o fiivty-five
gallon druri. Canotes were cooked in the cauldroas, nashed
with a pisce of tinber, znd e=ch nan was served one spooh-
ful as his ration.

"In late October 1942, aprroximately 97C prisonsrs of
war transferred fiom the Manila zrez to the Devao Penal
Colony or a2 transport vessel providing orly twenty inches
per rnan cf sleening space. Conditions on the vessel were
so bad that two dezaths occurred, and subsequently because
of weakness some fifty percent of the prisoners fell by the
roadside vn the march froh the wsnter front at Lasang, Davao,
to the Penal Colony.

"The places used by the Japancse zvthorities for the
internnent of Anerican civilians in the Fhilippine Islands
were inadequate for the nurmber of persons interned. At
the Brent School ot Baguio, tweniy to thirty civiiians
were assigned sleeping acenurodations in a room whicn hed
been intended for the use »f on2 persorn.

1At the Colunbia Ccuntry Ciub 2t Shanghel the interncer
were obliged to spend CRB $10,000 cf +heir own funds to have
a building deloused so that they might use 1t for a negded
dornitcory. At Weihsien no (reoeat no) refrigeration equip-
rnent was furnished by the Jarancse anthorities anc sone
of the few household refrigerators of the internces were
taken fror then and were used by the Japanese guards, with
the result that food spoiled during the surmer 2f 1943.
The lack of sanitery fazcilities is reported from zll of
these canps.

"Charge XVII. 4anericen personnel have suirered death
and imprisonrment for participation in nilitary operations,
Death and long-term imprisonrent have been imposec for
attermts to escane for whick the maxuimun ncnaltey vader the
Geneva Converntion is thircy days arrest. Nelither the
Arerican Governienc aor its protecting Fower has been
inforned in the rmanner vrovidad by the Couventlon of these
cases or of naayv other insionces whén anevicens were sub-

%) jected to illegal punishnent. Sreciilc instances 2re
%; cited under the next charge.
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"Charge XVI. At Canp O0'Donnell riany of the nen had
to live without shelter during 1942, In one cose twenty-
threc officers werc assigned teo a shack, fourteen by-twenty
feet in size. Drinking water was extrenely scarce, it
being necessary to stand in line six to ten hours %q get a
drink. Offlicers had no bath for ihe first thirty--five -
days in the camp and hac but one gallon of water ecach in
which to have their first baths afier that delay. The
xitchen equipnent consisted of cauldrons and a firty-five
gallon drun. Canotes were ccoked in the cauldroas, nashed
with a plece of tinber, and ezch nan was served one spoon-
ful.as his ration.

"In 1ate Octoberr 1942, approximately 970 prisonars of

war transferred fiomn the Manila area to the Davao Penal .
Colony cr a transport vessel providing only twenty inches
per nan cf sleening space. Conditions on the vessel were

so _bad that two deaths occurred, and subszouently because

of weakness sorne fifty percent of the prisoners fell by the
roadside on the march fron the weter front at Lasang, Davao,
to the Penal Colony.

"The piaces used by the .Japanecse zvthorities for the
internrient of American civilians in the Fhilippine Islands
were 1lnadequate for the number of perscns interned. At
the Brent School <t Baguic, twenly to thirty civiliians
were assigned sieeping acceniwodations in'a roon whica had
been Intended for the use ~f onz jperson,

"At the Columbia Country Ciunb «t shainghel the internsar
vere obliged to spend CRE $10,000 cf their own funds to hive
a building deloused 30 than they nigh% use it for a nepded
dornitcry. At Weihsien no (reneat no) refrlgeration aguia--
nent was furnished by the Japranose authoritles and sone
of the few household refrigerators of ihe internces were
taken fromn then and were wused by the Japanese guards, with
the result that focd spolled during the zunnmer of 1943.

The lack of sanitory fueil:ities is reported fron all of
these canps.

"Charge XVIT. 4anerican personnel have suirered death
and imprisonment for participation in nilitary operations.
Death and long-term imprisornrnent have been inposed for
atternpts to escane For whick the maxairmm ncocnalci under the
Geneva-Converntiorn is $hiriy days arrest. HNelther the
Anerican Governrent nor ite protecting Fover has lizen
inforned in the nanner provided by the Convention of these
cases or of nany other 1lastonces when anecicens were suvb-
Jected to illegal purishnaut. Srecifie iastances are
cited under the next charge.
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Didn't you have cnough interest in the 20,000 men under Inabuchi to
make inquiry to sce that they would be properly used by Yamashita?
Yes, I thought quitc a bit about my troops. I told Rear /idmiral
Iwabuchi to do his best under General Yamashita, but I did not tecll
him how to perform his duties under him.

fdmiral, what I am trying to gat at is that it was not a question
of your interferring with the chain of command but a question of
your satisfying yoursclves that your troops were going to be used
properly in an operation you had nothing to do with,

Iwabuchi came to scc me from time to time and there were informal
talks and T would ask him how things were running and how the troops
were and he would unofficially tell me of thesc things, but I

would not say how thc troops should act under Yamashita.

Did Iwabuchi come to Baguio?
The situation did not permit such a thing.

When you said Iwabuchi would come from time t6 time, what did you

mecan?
That was when I was still in lLianila.

While you were still in kanila, Iwabuchi was still under your
command, he had not been transferrcd to Yamashite. Isnft that
correcot ?

Yese

"'gll now, what we havce becen discussing was thot when Iwabuchi was
supposed to have gone over under the command of Yamashita you stated
that after that time Iwabuchi would come to sce you from time to
time. Do you wish to now qualify your answer to show that Iwabuchi
would comec to sce you from time to Linc before he caue undsr Yama-
shita's command?

ch, that is the way I wish to have it. All I have bcen saying

is about things that have occurred beforc Iwabuchl vas placed under

the command of Yamashita,

- Pouldn't it have been batter for you, as commender of the Navy

forces in Manila, to confer with the commander of the Army forces
with regard to the defense of Manila rather than entrust that job
to one of your subordinates?

I believe that I as o Navy man should not interfere with the Army
in the plans of land varfare. Since it was understood that Rear
Ldmiral Iwabuchi was to be under the command of General Yamashita,
it was natural that he confoarred with General Yamashite about the
defensc, and I was a firm belicver that the Navy should not inter-
fere with the Army'!s plan and would not express iy opinion on how
land warfarc should be waged. Looking back at the records of
Amy warfare, it secus that the Navy had interferred from time to
time with Army operations and the results were not too good,
Therefore, I thought it better that the Army's warfarce should be
left to the Army and not be interferred with by the Navy.

How often did you confer with General Yamashite prior to January
5, 1945%?

- I belicve I have met him over ten timese.

How far werc your headquarters from General Yomeshita's hcadquarters?

My headq\mrt.ers were at the Navy club and his were at Fort McKinley.

T Aanit know ho: §-- =pitt sdeoy wrr. Tt would bhe zpout fiftecn or
tt;arﬂ"" - -.uuLS I‘id@ I bullCVOd
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Didn't you have ecnough interest in the 20,000 men under. Inabuchi to
mke inquiry to sce that they would be properly used by Yamashita?
Yes, I.thought quitc a bit about my troops. I told Rear /dmiral
Iwabuchi to do his best under General Yamashita, but I did not tell
him how to porform his duties under him.

Adniral, what I am trying to gct at is that it was not a question
of your intcrferring with the chain of comnand but a quostion of
your satisfying yourselves that your-troops were.going to be used
properly in an operation you had nothing to do with.

Twabuchi came to scc me from time to time and there were informal
talks and I would ask him how things were running and how the. troops
were and he would unofficially tell me of these things, but I

would not say how thc troops should act under Yamashita.

Did Iwabuchi come to Baguio?
The situation did not permit such a thihg.

When you said Iwabuchi would come from time to time, what did you

mean?
That was when I was still in lianila.

While you were still in Menila, Iwabuchi was still under your
command, he had not been transferrcd to Yamashita, TIsn't that
correcct?

YeSe

"ell now, what we have been discussing was thot when Iwabuchi was
supposed to have gone over under the command of Yamashita you stated
that after that time Iwabuchi would come to sece you from time to
time, Do you wish to now qualify your answer to show that Iwabuchi
would come to see you from time to Linc before he cmue under Yama-
shita's command?

Yes, that is the way I wish to have it. All I have bcen saying

is about things that have occurred beforc Iwabuchi tas placed under

the command of Yamashita.

Wouldn't it have been better for you, as commender of the Navy
forces in Manila, to confer with the commnder of the irmy forces
with regard to the defense of Manila rather than entrust thav job
to onc of your subordinates?

T believe that I as o Navy nian should not interfere with the Army
in the plans of land warfare. Since it was understood that Rear
ndmiral Iwabuchi was to be under the command of General Yamashita,
it was natural that he conferred with General Yamashite about the
defensc, and I was a firm believer that the Navy should not inter-
feore with the Army's plan and would not express iy opinion on how
land warfarc should be waged. Looking back at the rccords of -
Ay warfare, it sccus that the Navy had interferrcd from timc to
time with Army operations and the results were not too good.
Therefore, I thought it better that the Army's warfare should be
left to the Army and not be interferred with by the Navy.

How often did you confor with General Yamashita prior to January

54 19457
I believe I have nct him over ten tincse..

How far werc your headquarters from General Yameshita's headquarters?

My headquarters were at.the Nawy <lub and his were at. Fort McKinley.. ...
T 4nn't know ho e spert blooy crc. Tt would ho goout fifteen or
twaent.~r - v (8 ride I bolicve,.
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. your sat:.sfying yoursclves, that your troops wore going to be used
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Didn't you have enough interest in the 20,000 men under Iuwabuchi to
mke inquiry to sce that they would be properly used by Yamashita?
Yes, I thought quitec a bit about my troops. I told Rear /idmiral
Iwabuchi to do his best under General Yamashita, but I did not tell
him how to pcrform his duties under him,

fdmiral, what I am trying to get at is that it was not a question
of your intorforring with the chain of command but a question of

properly in an operation you had nothing to do with,
Iwabuchi came to scc me from time to time and there were informal

talks and I would ask him how things were running and how the troops |
were and he would unofficially tell me of these things, but I "
would not say how thc troops should act under Yamashita.

Did Iwabuchi come to Baguio?
The situation did not permit such a thing.

When you said Iwabuchi would come from time té time, what did you

mean?
That was when I was still in lLianila.

While you were still in kanila, Iwabuchi was still under your
command, he had not been transferrcd to Yamashita., Isn't that
corrcet? ‘

Yes,

"iell now, what we have been discussing was thot when Iwabuchi was
supposed to have gone over under the command of Yamashita jyou stated
that after that time Iwabuchi would come to sce you from time to -
times Do you wish to now qualify your answer to show that Iwabuchi .
would comc to sec you from time to Limc befere he caue under Yama-

shital's command?

Yc.s, that is the way I wish to have it. All I have been saying :
is about things that have occurred before Iwabuchi as placed under

the command of Yamashita,

R A e
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Wouldn't it have been better for you, as conuender ol the Navy
forces in kanila, to confer with the commnder of the Army forces
with regard to t.hc defense of Manila rather than entrust that job

to one of your subordinatcs? |
I believe that I as ~ Navy nan should not mterfcre with the (rmy

in the plans of land warfarce. Since it was understood that Rear
Admiral Iwabuchi was to be under the command of General Yamashita, \
it was natural that he confarrcd with Goneral Yamashits about the
defensc, and I was a firn belicver that the Navy should not inter-
fore with the Army's plan and would not express iy opinion on how
land warfarc should be waged. ILooking back at the rccords of
Amy warfarc, it scaas that the Navy had interferrcd from time to
time with /rmy operations and the results were not too good.
Therefore, I thought it better that the Army's warfarc should be
left to the /rmy and not be interferred with by the Navy.,

Howi often did you confor with General Yamashita prior to January

5, 19452
I belicve I have mct- him over ten timese

How far werc your headquerters from General Yormeshita's headquarters?

My headquarters werec at the Navy club and his werc at Fort McKinley.
T Aon't know b €= apist bloy wrr. Tt wovld bo goout fiftecn or
twant s - *swv (S ride I baelicvo,
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Docunent No., 24074 Page =.

"Charre XII. The condition of health of prisoners
of war in the Philippine Islards is deplorable. AT San
Ferpandc in Apnril 1942, American and Filipino prisoners
wem- held in a barbesd-wire enclosare so covercrowded that
sleep and rest were impossible. So nany or then were sick
and so 1iittle care was given to the sick that hunan
excroment covered the whole =ren. The eaclosure ot 57N
Fernando was rore than 100 kiloneters from Bastazno and The
»boriinable treatrient given io the prisoners thers cannot:
be explained by battle conditions. Tne prisoners were
forced to walk this distance in seven days under rerclless
ariving. Many who were unable to kesp vp with tile narch
wera2 shot or bayoneted by the guards. During this journey.
ag well as =t other times when prisoncers of war vere noevad
in the Philivopine Islands, they were assernbled in the open
sun even when the detaining cuthorities could have 21 lowad
them to cssenble in the shade. American anéd Filipino
prisonzrs are known. to have been turied alive along the
roadside and persistent reperts huzve heen reccivec of men
who tried to rise from their pgraves but werc beaten Aown
with shovels and buried alive.

"At Camp O'Donnel conditions were so bad that 2,200
Ariericans and riore than 20,000 Filipinos are reliably
reported to have died in the first few months of thelr
detention. There is no doubt that a large nunmber of tThese
de=ths could have been nrevented had The Japenese auchor-
ities provided ninirun nedicel care for the prisoners.

The so-called hospitel there was absolutely inadeguate to
nect the situation. Prisoners of wer lay sick ard nhaked
on the floor, receiving no attention and ©ooO sick to move I're
their own excrernent. The hospital was so avercrewded that
Americans were laid on the ground outside in the heat of
the ®lazing sun. The Anmerican doctors in the camp were
¢iven no nedicine, and aven had no water To wosh the human
yeste from the boéies of the patients. ®Hventually, when
quinine wes issued, there wos only enough properly to take
sare of ten cases of malarin, while thousands of prisoners
were suffering fron the diseasz. Over two hundred out of

the three hundred priscness from Camp 0'Donnell died while
they were on a work detail at B-otangas.

it Cabanatuan there vos no nadicine for ohe treatment
of malzrice until ofter the rrisorers had been in the canv
for five months. The first shinrent of nediclnes fron the
FPhilippine Red Cross wzss lield ur b7y the catp authorities
on the pretext that they mst neke an janventory ef the ship-
rment. This they were so dilatery in ceing that rany deaths
sceurred before the medicine wos realkfscd. Because of lach
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Didn't you have cnough intercst in’the 20,000 men under Tuabuchi to
mke inquiry to sce that they would be properly used by Yamashita?
Yes, I thought quitc a bit about my troops. I told Rear idmiral
Iwabuchi to do his best under General Yamashita, but I did not tell
him how to perform his dutics under him.

Admiral, what I am trying to gct at is that it was not a queéstion
of your interferring with the chain of command but 2 quostion of
your satisfying yoursclves that your troops were going to be used
properly in an operation you had nothing to do with. Y g
Twabuchi came to scc me from timec to time and there were informal
talks and I would ask him how things werec running and how the troops
were and he would unofficially tell me of these thiings, but I

would not say how the troops should act under Yamashita.

Did Iwabuchi come to Baguio?
The situation did not permit such a thihg.

When you said Iwabuchi would come from time tO time, what did you

mecan?
That was when I was still in luanlla

While you were still in kanila, Iwabuchi was still under your
command, he had not been transferrcd to Yamashite. Isn't that
corrcct?

Yes.

ell now, what we have been discussing was that when Iwabuchi was
supposed to have gone over under the command of Yamashita you stated
that after that time Iwabuchi would comec to sce you from time to
time, Do you wish to now qualify your answer to chow that Iwabuchi
would come to sece you from time to Llwc befere he caue under Yama-
ghita's command?

Ycs, that is the way I wish to have it. All I have bocon saylng

is about things that have occurred beforc Iwabuchi ias placed under

the comand of Yamashita,

touldn't it have been batter for you, as commander ol the Navy
forces in kanila, to confer with the cammander of the irmy forces
with regard to the defense of Manila rather than entrust that job
to one of your subordinates?

I believe that I as o Navy uan should not interfere vwith the jrmy
in the plans of land warfarc. Since it was understood that Rear
fidmiral Iwabuchi was to be under the command of General Yamashita,
it was natural that he conforrcd with General Yamashiteo about the
defense, and I was a firm belicver that the Navy should not inter-
fore with the Army!s plan and would not express my opinion on how
land warfarc should be waged. Looking back at the records of
pAmy warfarce, it sccas that the Navy had interferrcd from timc to

time with Army operations and the results were not too good.

Therefore, I thought it ‘better that the Army's warfarc should be
left to the Army and not be interferred with by the Navy.

How often did you confer with General Yamashite prior to January
5y 19457 |

I belicve I have met him over ten times.

How far werc your headquerters from General Yumeshitals headquarters?

My headquarters were at the Navy club and his werc at Fort McKinley.

T Ann't know b S== prist by oer. Tt. would be zpout fiftecn or
twant-r - sewv €8 ride I boelicve,

~1l]—- ~ Japancse Han
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Evidentiary Document No. 5193,

k‘ .

D6 you know the names of -arly Japanese personnel who were with you
'om" Cabanatuan,

Yes, I do, Ltsgliurata who came to the grou
Philippine Isl ‘am a Japenese civilianfdnberpreter named
firectly responsible for these conditions. Their

attitude-.wq_sfona;_orﬁ-ﬁo&-in’_cen-ti-éna to- our faces-and of no colcern
om us. .hile we were in this tennis court,

they cohtinbally ~eaid they were trying {.o arrénge transportetvion .
and fool fof ubs IHowever, at the same-time, they would be seen &cross
the roed with Japanese soldiers, talking, laughing, drinking beer

and smoking cigarettes; and from what I understand, did nothing

\that happened then? -

on the boat?
As

Irs .Jada were

once they were away

to mitigate the situation.
Qe
Ae

Tle -were- then taken to- Somr-Fernando, Philippine Islands, vhere we
were kept in an old abandoned theater for three days. ie were
then louded on a railroad car. One hundred of us were crowded

into a box cars ' Thesd¢ cars were the small European size. The

Japanese placed some of our personnel on top of the cars so the
bombers wouldn't hit them. These men were given pillow cases and
white flags for signaling.- : R v

Where were you taken next?

. fie were-talen off’ the troin at Linguien on the Island of Luzon. Ve

spent part of the day in the school yard where we were given no
sanitation facilities., 'le were then marched to the beacl where ve

vemeined two days and one night. 7eé were on the sand; had no

shadey; almost no water and that which we did have vas measurcd by
the spoonful, Two Officers, including one colonel, and also one
enlisted men'died from exposure. Incidentally, we were in fear of
our lives because under the scnd of the beach had been buried gas-
oline and ammunition.

iiere you again loaded on A boat?

We vwere put on & horcé transport, There were two holds and I vas
in the socond one, I,Ws grouped among horse remeins, flies and
corruption. Again, wd%er was measured by the spoonful. We viere
supposed to have been fed two times. a day. but.of ten e verc only
fed once a dey, Our food generzlly consisted of threg tablespoon-
fuls of hot smter soup znd the same amount of cooked rice,two times
a days lNany of the men died eithcr from accumulated wagaknesses from
former experiences, dysentery or malaria. The dead would average
25 a day meinly from staervotion, dysentery or infection,, .& Were

starved that we ate flies and. some men even picked grein that vas on
the floor with the horse rcmainas.
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ividentiary Document No. 5193.

We were crazed with hunger. On the 2nd, or 3rd, of Jamary. we were
torpedoed twice:« The rudder and propeller of the boat wvere dcmigcd
but there were no casualties, .e were on this horse transpont .;buut
thirteen days all told and on January 9th in Tacaw Harbor, TForio:

ve were hit by a Navy Bomb Diver.
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ileYe any efforts made to siop this condition?

Lts Col. Olsen made many efforts at the risk of his own personal caresy
to improve our lots Lt., lurata and Mr. Vada would not do anythiung ard
would not listen,

‘What happened on January 9th?

fle were hit by several bombs along the vater line and three of the bombs
exploded in the forward hold where 600 to 700 men were lined up in squads
waiting for breakfast. At that time, we hed one G:I. cup of te: for

2l men, These three bombs killed about 500 of the 700 men guariered
there and about 200 in the afterhold were wounded, 'e had all been in

e weakened condition becsuse we were ravaged by starvation, exposurc -:ud
zero weathers The holds vere uncovered ond we had no blankets. MNost of
us hud no clothinge Ve had absolutely no medical attention and as e
neared Formosa, we had food but once a dey, no water and we scraped the
floor covered with horse remains for snow that filtered down through the
holde At the time we were bombed, spproximately 40 men a day were dying
from starvation and privation.

+~hat happened after you were bombed?

Those of us vho survived were transferrcd to a smull inter-island

steamer und m::ved to Japan, The death rate vas high but I am uneble

to estimate it. Ye arrived at ibji on the islced of Kyushu approximately
January 20th or 29thy Iany of the men were beaten by guards when they
attempted to scrape snow off the canvas to get needed liguids. Conditicas
again were poor. Approximately 225 of the original 1687 disembarked

v Noji and 105 of thet group were sick and wounded end were taken to

a8 hospital. At this time Lt. Murata and Mr. .nda left the Zroups

whaet happened then?

This hospital was & barc shod. ‘There were no doctors and we had to lay
on the floor. Y'e did noi have any medical =id for several duys &nd we
received only a amall quantity of foc:d. ile wwere fed twice a day but
that was muinly thin rice grucl. .'¢ reomained here until February 20th.
The death rate at this time was very high and we had about 10 to 17 dead
a day and on February 20th, all that remained of the 105 were 27 mcne

—————— . -1 2
(Signed) Horold J. Yhitcomb
1st. Lt., AM.F,
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ividentiary Document No. 5193.

We were crazed with hunger. On the 2nd; or 3rd., of Jamary. Ve veece
torpedoed twice. The rudder and propeller of the boat vere dumnged

but there were no ocosualties, .e were on this horsc transport aboul
thirteen days all told and on January 9th in Tacaw Horbor, Fori.oaau.

we were hit by a Navy Bomb Diver.

|

Qe iord ‘any ef*"uz‘ta ‘made to stop this cordition?

.» Lte Coli Olmen made many efforis at the risk of his own personal c=a:ety
to improve our lots It. Murata and Mr. Vada would not do anything ard
would not listen,

-
L —— -

Q¢ V'hat happened on January 9th? '

¢« e were hit by several bombs zlong the vato:c' line and three of the bombs
exploded in the forward hold where 600 to 700 men were lined up in squacds
waiting for breakfast. Lt that time, we had one G.I. cup of teu for
24, mens These three bombs killed about 500 of the 700 men quartered
there and about 200 in the afterhold were wounded, Ve had all) been in
a weakened condition becezuse we were ravaged by starvation, exposure ond
zero veathers The holds werc uncovered ond we had no blankets, Most of
us had no clothing. ''‘e had absolutely no medical attention and as ve
neared Tormosa, we had food but once & dey. nowater and we scraped the
floor covered with horse remains for snotw that filtered down through the
holde At the time we vere bombed, spproximately 40 men a day were dying
from starvation and privation,

7:  :hat happened after you were bombed?
"« Thosoe of us vho survived were transferrcd to a small inter-island
gteamer wnd moved to Japan, The death rate vas high but I am unsble

-
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to estimate it. "'e arrived at ibji on the islcund of Kyushu approximately -+
| Januwary 28th or 29the Many of the men tere beaten by guards when they |
) attempted to scrape snow off the canvas to get needed liguids. Conditicas ‘

again were poor. Approximately 225 of the original 1687 disembarked
' at Moji and 105 of thet group were sick and wunded and were taken to '
a hospital. At this time Lt. Murata and . .ada left the groups

» Jhat happened then? '
< & This hoapital was a barc shed., ‘There were no doctors and we had ta lay
' on the floor. e did noi have any modicol =2id for several days tnd we
received only a amall quantity of food. !'e were fed twice a day but -
| | that was muinly thin rice gruel. e remained here until February 20th. |
The death rate at this time was very high and we had about 10 to 17 dead ‘.
a day and on February 20th, all that remained of the 105 were 27 mcnhe

e} Ty, 2
! (Signed) H'rold J. Yhitcomb
lBti Ltl| IJ‘FB
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iCharege IV. On one occasion during the summer of 1747
all of the persons held at the Columbia Country Clubp,
Shanghai, were punished bv. cancellation of dental appoiat:
ments because conplaints were made te representatives of
the Swiss Conanulate General. During the sane neriod, at
Camp B. Yangchow, the entire camp-was deprived of a neal
by the Camp Comnendant bacause complaints hed been ade or.-
cerning the deiivery of spoiled food.

nPhere are eited under Scotion XVIII below, cases oF
prisoners of war being struck bscause they asgat for food
or water.

: "Charge V¥, Cilvilian interitess at Hong Kong have gous
without footw2ar and civilian intarnces at Kobe have suficred
fron lack of wain clothing. T 1942 and 1S43. anerican and
Filipino prisoners of war in the Philippines ana civilian
internees at Baguio were rcread to lzbor without snoes anc
clad only in loin cloths.

nCharee VI, Thieg is renorte” % have Leesn vhe czcge au tn

followin:’ ernrms. prisoncy of wzr ¢uwips in the Thllirvine_ i1eine
nris-ner of ©2ar enclosures =i Eﬁrivuies Bay, ?hii%p?ine Tul=an

civilian Inturnrent carms at Baguin, Canecon, Chaioo,
Peking, [anila, Tsingtao, -Weihsien, and Yhngchow? ant at
the Ash Canp, Chapoi Camp, Luaghwa Canp, and Peocioung Canp.
in or near Shanghai. The articlez nost needed by the
prisoners and internecs nave opeen cockea. 1or example,
Japznese soldiers took thc shoes fron an American officar
prisoner of war who was forced tc walk unshod {roil batanl
to San Fernande during the march which “egan about Lpril it
1942, Although the prisoners ccnstantly cvffored flaof Laok
of drinking water canteeus were taken from priscus7?s durirg
this march; one of thess victims was Lieutcnant Colonel
Williart E. Dva2ss.

"Ait Corregidor a Japanes: soldler was szer by Lieutensav
Cormiznder Melvyn H. McCoy with one arn covered fron elbow to
wrist and the other arm nelf covered with wrist Watches taken
fron American and Filipino priscnarc-cof war.

"Charge VII. Arnerican pr.soncrs of war ir Mainila weie¢
forced by Jananese csoldiersto allow thenselvas to be photo-
graphed operating captured American rilitary equipnent in

aonnection with thne productinu of the Tapanzse propagandd

‘film "Rip down the Stars =nd Stripec.”

npPrigoncrs of war {'rco Corragidcr heing voken to Manil.
were not landed at the port of Manile out were unloaded
outside the city and were forced to-march through the 2nuii2
city to Bilibid Prison avout lley 25, 1942,
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